INTERLEUKIN GENETICS INC Form 10-Q November 09, 2006

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2006

Commission File Number: 001-32715

INTERLEUKIN GENETICS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 135 Beaver Street, Waltham, MA (Address of principal executive offices) **94-3123681** (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) **02452** (Zip Code)

Registrant s Telephone Number: (781) 398-0700

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES x NO o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of accelerated filer and large accelerated filer in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer O

Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer o.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). YES o NO x

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1. Financial Statements of Interleukin Genetics, Inc. and Subsidiaries	
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2006 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2005 (Audited)	3
Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)	4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity (Unaudited)	5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)	6
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	7
Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of	
<u>Operations</u>	22
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	28
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	29
PART II OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	30
Item 1A. Risk Factors	30
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	32
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities	32
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	32
Item 5. Other Information	33
Item 6. Exhibits	33
<u>Signatures</u>	34
Exhibit Index	35

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.

INTERLEUKIN GENETICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	September 30, 2006 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2005 (Audited)
ASSETS Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 9,884,140	\$ 3,415,174
Accounts receivable from related party	361,924	\$ 5,415,174
Accounts receivable, net	1,246,045	278
Inventory	2.064.576	270
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	435,829	174,204
Total current assets	13,992,514	3,589,656
Fixed assets, net	971,561	956,828
Intangible assets, net	10,042,583	387,173
Other assets	36,418	36,418
Total Assets	\$ 25,043,076	\$ 4,970,075
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY	+	+ -, ,,
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable.	\$ 638,874	\$ 170,474
Accrued expenses	666,101	520,512
Deferred receipts	430,327	2,002,760
Commitments for funded research and development projects	148,906	318,019
Due to Alan James Group, LLC.	748,319	
Current portion of capital lease obligations		2,977
Total current liabilities	2,632,527	3,014,742
Convertible debt, net of discount of \$577,343 and \$923,748 at September 30, 2006		
and December 31, 2005, respectively	2,017,993	1,671,588
Contingent acquisition consideration	4,598,595	
Total liabilities.	9,249,115	4,686,330
Stockholders equity:		
Convertible preferred stock \$0.001 par value 6,000,000 shares authorized; 5,000,000		
shares of Series A issued and outstanding at September 30, 2006 and December 31,		
2005; aggregate liquidation preference of \$18,000,000 at September 30, 2006	5,000	5,000
Common stock, \$0.001 par value 75,000,000 shares authorized; 27,200,951 and		
23,927,326 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2006 and December 31,		
2005, respectively	27,201	23,927
Additional paid-in capital	81,303,849	61,450,598
Accumulated deficit	(65,542,089) (61,195,780)
Total stockholders equity	15,793,961	283,745
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 25,043,076	\$ 4,970,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

INTERLEUKIN GENETICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

	Three Months Ended September 30, 2006 2005			Nine Months Ended S 2006	er 30, 2005			
Revenue:	2000		2005		2000		2005	
Revenue from related party	\$ 649,106		\$		\$ 2,209,564		\$	
Revenue from others	685,825		5,690		702,281		20,743	
Total revenue	1,334,931		5,690		2,911,845		20,743	
Cost of revenue	1,006,937				1,612,871			
Gross profit	327,994		5,690		1,298,974		20,743	
Operating expenses:								
Research and development	685,814		738,865		2,254,284		2,031,727	
Selling, general and administrative	1,245,918		641,384		2,868,615		2,392,584	
Amortization of intangible assets	131,584		8,380		155,838		24,822	
Total operating expenses	2,063,316		1,388,629		5,278,737		4,449,133	
Loss from operations	(1,735,322)	(1,382,939)	(3,979,763)	(4,428,390)
Other income (expense):								
Interest income	77,652		38,458		149,845		90,349	
Interest expense	(60,510)	(47,571)	(169,984)	(131,829)
Amortization of note discount	(115,469)	(115,469)	(346,407)	(346,406)
Total other income (expense)	(98,327)	(124,582)	(366,546)	(387,886)
Net loss	\$ (1,833,649)	\$ (1,507,521)	\$ (4,346,309)	\$ (4,816,2	76)
Basic and diluted net loss per								
common share	\$ (0.07)	\$ (0.06)	\$ (0.18)	\$ (0.20)
Weighted average common shares outstanding	25,745,809		23,689,490		24,658,213		23,649,365	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

INTERLEUKIN GENETICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006 (Unaudited)

	Convertible Preferred St	ock	Common Stoc	k \$0.001	Additional Paid-in	Accumulated	
	Shares	Amount	Shares	par value	Capital	Deficit	Total
Balance as of December 31,				-	-		
2005 (Audited)	5,000,000	\$ 5,000	23,927,326	\$ 23,927	\$ 61,450,598	\$ (61,195,780) \$ 283,745
Net loss						(4,346,309) (4,346,309)
Investment by Alticor:							
Research funding					1,451,978		1,451,978
Other					1,274,210		1,274,210
Private placement, net of							
issuance costs			2,750,037	2,750	15,559,937		15,562,687
Common stock issued:							
Exercise of warrants			125,000	125	312,375		312,500
Exercise of stock options			331,315	331	509,682		510,013
Employee stock purchase plan			6,513	7	31,624		31,631
Restricted stock issued to							
employees, net of forfeitures			32,760	33	(33)	
Common stock issued to							
employees			28,000	28	(28)	
Stock-based compensation							
expense					713,506		713,506
Balance as of September 30,							
2006	5,000,000	\$ 5,000	27,200,951	\$ 27,201	\$ 81,303,849	\$ (65,542,089) \$ 15,793,961

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

INTERLEUKIN GENETICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

	For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006 2005				
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	2000			2005	
Net loss	\$	(4,346,309)	\$	(4,816,276)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating	Ŧ	(1,210,20)	,	Ŧ	(1,010,110)
activities:					
Depreciation and amortization	241,	708		224,2	254
Amortization of intangible assets	155,8	338		24,82	23
Amortization of note discount	346,4	405		346,4	406
Stock-based compensation expense	713,	506			
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of the acquisition:					
Accounts receivable	(101	,619)	9,76	5
Inventory	235,4	423			
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	(153	,022)	(2,23))
Accounts payable	4,74	5		(1,89)1)
Accrued expenses	(207	,316)	(227	,399)
Deferred receipts	(298	,223)	1,990	0,000
Commitments for funded research and development projects	(169	,113)	(73,5) (78
Net cash used in operating activities	(3,57	7,977)	(2,52	26,131)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:					
Purchases of fixed assets	(146)	(47,3	
Increase in other assets	(111	,248)	(108	,098)
Acquisition of the assets and business of the Alan James Group, LLC, including transaction					
costs paid of \$530,087		51,344)		
Net cash used in investing activities	(7,81	8,889)	(155	,425)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:					
Proceeds from investment by Alticor		14,665			5,832
Proceeds from exercises of warrants and stock options	822,			239,	
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan	31,63			21,43	
Principal payments of capital lease obligations, net	(2,97)	(11,3	
Net cash provided by financing activities		5,832		2,440	
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	6,468			(235	
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period		5,174			8,425
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$	9,884,140		\$	4,293,260
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:					
Non-cash investing and financing activities:	.			<i>.</i>	
Deferred receipt reclassified to equity	\$	1,274,210		\$	
Interest and income taxes paid:	¢	160.004		¢	121.020
Cash paid for interest	\$	169,984		\$	131,829

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

INTERLEUKIN GENETICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Interleukin Genetics, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Interleukin Genetics Laboratory Services, Inc. and AJG Brands, Inc., doing business as the Alan James Group, (collectively referred to as the Company or Interleukin), as of September 30, 2006 and have been prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial reporting and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements, which, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments (including normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation, should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005. Operating results for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future interim period or for the entire fiscal year. The operating results include the operating results of AJG Brands, Inc. from August 17, 2006 through September 30, 2006.

Acquisition

On August 17, 2006, the Company acquired the assets and business of the Alan James Group, LLC (the Alan James Group). The acquired business primarily develops, markets and sells nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals and related activities. The combination will create a diversified, fully integrated provider of products and services in the consumer and professional healthcare marketplace. Interleukin and Alan James have complementary capabilities in genetic testing services and preventive healthcare products distribution. The initial purchase price consisted of the payment of \$7,031,257 in cash and the obligation to place in escrow \$250,000 and 88,055 shares of the Company s Common Stock valued at \$500,000, or \$5.6873 per share. The Company is also responsible for paying additional contingent consideration of up to \$1,500,000 in cash and up to 1,628,833 shares of Common Stock over the next three years upon achievement of certain earnings milestones by the acquired business. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, *Business Combinations* (SFAS No. 141). Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements include the results of the acquired company s operations since the acquisition date, August 17, 2006.

The purchase price was allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeded the initial payments by \$4.6 million resulting in negative goodwill. Pursuant to SFAS No. 141, the Company recorded as a liability, contingent consideration up to the amount of negative goodwill. If and when contingent payments become due, the Company will apply the contingent payments against the liability. Contingent payments in excess of \$4.6 million, if any, will be recorded as goodwill. The determination and allocation of the purchase price is preliminary and may be subject to potential adjustments, including contingent consideration and the estimated transaction costs.

The components of the preliminary purchase price allocation are as follows:

Purchase Price:		
Cash (including the obligation to place in escrow \$250,000)	\$	7,281,257
Stock	500,	000
Estimated transaction costs	550,	000
	\$	8,331,257
Allocation:		
Accounts Receivable	\$	1,479,837
Inventory	2,30	0,000
Other current assets	108,	611
Property and equipment	110,	144
Acquired intangible assets	9,70	0,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	(768	,740
Contingent acquisition costs	(4,59	98,595
	\$	8,331,257

Acquired intangible assets are as follows:

			Estimated
	Esti	mated	Remaining
Identified Intangible Assets	Fair	Value*	Useful Life (Yrs)
Retailer Relationships	\$	5,700,000	10
Indefinite Lived Trademarks	\$	1,100,000	N/A
Definite Lived Trademarks	\$	1,100,000	8
Non-Compete Agreements	\$	200,000	4
OTCeutical Formulations	\$	1,600,000	9
Total Fair Value of Intangible Assets	\$	9,700,000	

* Based on preliminary valuation analysis prepared by an independent valuation specialist

For tax purposes, the fair value of the non-current tangible and intangible assets will be reduced pro rata to the extent of the contingent liability with a resultant reduction in amortization for tax purposes. If, and when, the contingent liability is paid, the tax basis of the non-current tangible assets will be increased pro rata in the amount of the contingent payment up to the non-current assets fair value at the date of acquisition. The unamortized tax basis will be amortized over the assets remaining useful life.

Had the acquisition of the Alan James Group been completed at the beginning of 2005, the Company s pro forma results for 2006 and 2005 would have been as follows:

	Three Months Ended September 30,				Nine Months Ended September 30,							
	2006			2005			2006			2005		
Revenue	\$	2,453,336		\$	2,906,636		\$	9,031,949		\$	7,529,548	
Net loss	\$	(1,791,025)	\$	(1,647,390)	\$	(4,543,824)	\$	(4,801,741)
Basic and diluted net loss per												
share	\$	(0.07)	\$	(0.06)	\$	(0.17)	\$	(0.18)

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company s most critical accounting policies are in the areas of its strategic alliance with Alticor, revenue recognition, stock-based compensation, income taxes, long-lived assets, intellectual property, beneficial conversion feature of convertible instruments and below market interest rate. These critical accounting policies are more fully discussed in these notes to interim consolidated financial statements.

Strategic Alliance with Alticor

In a private placement on March 5, 2003, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with Alticor, pursuant to which Alticor purchased from the Company 5,000,000 shares of the Company s Series A Preferred Stock, \$0.001 per share, for \$7,000,000 in cash and \$2,000,000 in cash to be paid, if at all, upon the Company reaching a milestone pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement (see Note 3). The Series A Preferred Stock issued in the private placement was initially convertible into 28,157,683 shares of the Company s Common Stock at the purchaser s discretion. Pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement, Alticor also agreed to refinance, in the form of convertible debt, certain of the Company s indebtedness in the form of previously issued promissory notes that were held by Alticor and certain individuals. This transaction amounted to \$2,595,336 in debt refinanced and was initially convertible into 5,219,903 shares of the Company s Common Stock. Concurrent with the closing of the Stock Purchase Agreement, the Company entered into a research agreement with Alticor that would provide additional funding of \$5,000,000 to be paid quarterly over a two-year period.

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) No. 01-1, *Accounting for Convertible Instruments Granted or Issued to a Nonemployee for Goods or Services or a Combination of Goods or Services and Cash* (EITF No. 01-1), the terms of both the agreement for goods or services provided and the convertible instruments should be evaluated to determine whether their separately stated pricing is equal to the fair value of the goods or services provided and the convertible instruments. If that is not the case, the terms of the respective transactions should be adjusted. The convertible instruments should be recognized at its fair value with a corresponding increase or decrease in the sales price of the goods or services.

On March 5, 2003, the Company was obligated to issue up to 33,377,586 shares of its common stock underlying the convertible preferred stock and the convertible debt issued. Based on a last reported trade price of \$0.71 per common share of the Company s common stock on March 5, 2003, the convertible instruments had a fair value of \$23,698,086 on the date of issuance. Based on the fair value of the convertible instruments and the guidance provided by EITF 01-1, the Company will recognize the fair value of the convertible instruments, to the extent of proceeds received, with a corresponding decrease to the sales price of the goods and services provided. Therefore, at March 5, 2003, the Company treated the \$5,000,000 committed research funding as an equity investment rather than revenue and any costs of performing the research services under the agreement were classified as research and development expenses. Any subsequent proceeds that the Company will receive from Alticor that are linked to the March 2003 transaction, will be considered equity rather than revenue to the extent of the fair value of the convertible instruments at March 5, 2003. In June 2004, the Company entered into another research agreement with Alticor for potential funding up to \$2,200,000 and in March 2005, the Company entered into two more agreements to provide additional funding of \$5,057,651 over two years beginning April 1,

2005 (see Note 3). In addition, since March 5, 2003, the Company received various purchase orders from Alticor valued at \$501,800 to conduct genotyping test for research purposes and in February 2006, the Company received \$35,000 to purchase capital equipment. These purchase orders, together with the research agreements entered into in June 2004 and March 2005, are deemed to be linked to the March 2003 transaction and, accordingly, are treated as equity rather than revenue. In addition, in March 2004, the Company entered into a Distribution Agreement with Alticor to provide genetic testing services. As part of the agreement, Alticor made a \$2.0 million prepayment in April 2005 for genetic testing services. The Distribution Agreement expired on March 22, 2006 and \$1,274, 210 was forfeited. Although this agreement was not deemed to be linked to the March 2003 transaction, the \$1,274,210 has been reclassified from deferred receipts to equity. As of September 30, 2006, proceeds received from Alticor which were recorded as consideration for the fair value of the convertible instruments issued in March 2003, amounted to \$23,698,086.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from genetic testing is recognized when service is completed, generally when the results have been reported to the individual who ordered the test. To the extent that tests have been prepaid but results have not yet been reported, recognition of all related revenue is deferred. These amounts are presented as deferred receipts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue from product sales is recognized at the time of sale, net of estimated returns, refunds and other related costs. Sales returns are estimated based on historical experience. For both the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006, the Company had recorded sales returns of \$82,988, which accounted for approximately 9% of gross product revenue. Returns are recorded in the year such returns are received and when returns are expected to be received in the near term. As of September 30, 2006, the Company has accrued for future returns of \$71,603, which is netted against accounts receivable in the consolidated balance sheets. In the ordinary course of business and due to future events and circumstances, actual sales returns could be above the estimated accrued amounts. However, management believes that amounts accrued as of September 30, 2006, are sufficient to cover such sales returns.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Management periodically evaluates inventory to identify items which are slow moving or have excess quantities. Management also considers whether certain items are carried at values which exceed the ultimate sales price less selling costs. Where such items are identified, management adjusts the carrying value to lower of cost or market.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), *Share-Based Payment* (SFAS No. 123R) for all share-based payments, using the modified prospective transition basis. The statement replaces SFAS No.123, *Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation* (SFAS No. 123) and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, *Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees*. Under this transition method, compensation cost recognized during the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006 includes: (1) compensation expense recognized over the requisite service period for all share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet fully vested, as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, and (2) compensation cost for all share-based awards granted on or subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, of which the Company has none to date. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company elected to retain its method of valuation for share-based awards granted using the Black-Scholes

option-pricing model which was also used for the Company s pro forma information required under SFAS No. 123 with the following assumptions used: 1) expected volatility is based on the standard deviation of the historical volatility of the weekly adjusted closing price of the Company s shares for a period equivalent to the expected life of the option, which is the same method used by the Company both prior and subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123R; 2) the expected life represents the period of time that the option is expected to be outstanding, taking into account the contractual term, historical exercise/forfeiture behavior, and the vesting period, if any; and 3) the risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant for a period equivalent to the expected life of the option. The Company is recognizing compensation expense over the requisite service period for the entire award (straight-line attribution method). Compensation cost for these awards amounted to \$119,062 and \$364,067 for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively.

Purchases made under the Company s Employee Stock Purchase Plan are now deemed to be compensatory under SFAS No. 123R because employees may purchase stock at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value of the Company s common stock on either the first day or the last day of a calendar quarter, whichever is lower. During the three months ended September 30, 2006, employees purchased 3,242 shares of common stock at a purchase price of \$4.89 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, employees purchased 6,513 shares of common stock at a weighted-average purchase price of \$4.86. Compensation cost associated with these awards amounted to \$3,696 and \$7,621 for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2006, the Company granted restricted stock awards to employees respect to shares, none of which were issued during the three months ended September 30, 2006. These awards vest at various dates through 2007 assuming continued employment with the Company and the holders of these awards participate fully in the rewards of stock ownership of the Company, including voting and dividend rights. The employees are not required to pay any consideration to the Company for these restricted stock awards. The Company measured the fair value of the shares based on the last reported price at which the Company s common stock traded on the date of the grant and compensation cost is recognized over the remaining vesting period. Compensation cost associated with these awards amounted to \$63,901 and \$147,980 for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively.

On March 31, 2006, the Company entered into employment agreements with certain key employees of the Company. These agreements provide for the issuance of up to 47,500 shares of the Company s common stock at various dates through 2009 assuming continued employment with the Company. The employees are not required to pay any consideration to the Company for these stock awards. As of September 30, 2006, no stock has been issued pursuant to these agreements. The Company measures the fair value of the shares, prior to issuance, based on the last reported price at which the Company s common stock traded for the reporting period and compensation cost is recognized ratably over the employment period required to earn the stock award. At time of issuance, the Company will measure the fair value of the shares based on the last reported price at which the Company s common stock traded on the date of the issuance and will record a cumulative adjustment, if any. Compensation cost associated with these awards amounted to \$35,494 and \$67,838 for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively.

On August 17, 2006, the Company entered into employment agreements with certain key employees of the Company. These agreements provided for the issuance of 25,000 shares of the Company s common stock. The employees were not required to pay any consideration to the Company for these stock awards. The Company measures the fair value of the shares based on the last reported price at which the Company s common stock traded on the date of the issuance. Compensation cost associated with these awards amounted to \$126,000 for both the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006.

A summary of compensation cost included in the statement of operations for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006 is as follows:

	Three Months Ended September 30, 2006	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006
Cost of revenue	\$ 10,098	\$ 25,565
Research and development expenses	73,269	220,231
Selling, general and administrative expenses	264,786	467,710
Total	\$ 348,153	\$ 713,506

In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements for prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS No. 123R. Had compensation cost for the Company s employee stock awards been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, the Company s net loss applicable to common stock and net loss per share would have been as follows for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2005:

	Three Months Ended September 30, 2005	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005
Net loss applicable to common stockholders:		
As reported	\$ (1,507,521)	\$ (4,816,276)
Stock-based employee compensation	(150,121)	(439,195)
Pro forma	\$ (1,657,642)	\$ (5,255,471)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share:		
As reported	\$ (0.06)	\$ (0.20)
Pro forma	\$ (0.07)	\$ (0.22)

The following table summarizes activity of the Company s stock-based compensation awards since December 31, 2005:

	Options Outs	tanding		XX 7. • 1.4. 1	Restricted Stock Awards Outstanding				
	Number of Shares	Weight Averag Exercis		Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term (years)	Number of Shares	Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value	Aggregate Intrinsic Value		
Outstanding at				•					
December 31, 2005	2,477,815	\$	2.69	5.64		\$			
Granted		\$			33,385	\$ 6.85			
Exercised	(331,315)	\$	1.54						
Lapsed					(8,380)	\$ 6.94			
Canceled	(26,250)	\$	4.20		(625)	5.25			
Expired	(2,000)	\$	2.85						
Outstanding At									
September 30, 2006	2,118,250	\$	2.86	5.13	24,380	\$ 6.86	\$ 6,861,864		
Exercisable at	, , ,						.))		
September 30, 2006	1,775,497	\$	2.73				\$ 5,859,140		

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on the last reported price at which the Company s common stock traded on September 30, 2006 of \$6.03, which would have been received by the option holders had they exercised their options as of that date.

Information related to stock options outstanding as of September 30, 2006 is as follows:

	Options Outs	tanding		Options Exercisable	
Range of Exercise Prices	Number of Shares	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (years)	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Exercisable Number of Shares	Exercisable Weighted Average Exercise Price
\$0.50 to \$0.91	118,443	3.66	\$ 0.83	114,443	\$ 0.84
\$1.22 to \$1.25	316,000	4.39	\$ 1.22	316,000	\$ 1.22
\$1.50 to \$1.85	108,275	4.03	\$ 1.71	108,275	\$ 1.71
\$2.04 to \$2.40	42,500	4.00	\$ 2.23	28,750	\$ 2.19
\$2.50 to \$2.88	712,275	2.74	\$ 2.80	712,275	\$ 2.80
\$3.00 to \$3.42	229,000	8.78	\$ 3.05	63,997	\$ 3.09
\$3.50 to \$3.71	127,057	8.11	\$ 3.65	86,057	\$ 3.64
\$4.10 to \$4.20	94,700	8.30	\$ 4.14	23,700	\$ 4.18
\$4.70 to \$4.75	370,000	7.21	\$ 4.70	322,000	\$ 4.70
\$0.50 to \$4.75	2,118,250	5.13	\$ 2.86	1,775,497	\$ 2.73

Options for the purchase of 1,985,815 shares were exercisable at December 31, 2005, with a weighted-average exercise price of \$2.36.

The following table summarizes the status of the Company s non-vested shares since December 31, 2005:

	Non-vested O	ptions	Non-vested Restricted Stock Awards		
	Number of Shares	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Number of Shares	Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value	
Non-vested at December 31, 2005	582,000	\$ 3.76		\$	
Granted		\$	33,385	\$ 6.85	
Vested	(212,997)	\$ 4.08	(8,380)	\$ 6.94	
Forfeited	(26,250)	\$ 4.20	(625)	\$ 5.25	
Non-vested At September 30, 2006	342,753	\$ 3.53	24,380	\$ 6.86	

As of September 30, 2006, there was approximately \$1.2 million of total unrecognized cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Company s stock plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 2.29 years. Options to purchase 331,315 shares were exercised during the nine months ended September 30, 2006; these options had an intrinsic value of approximately \$1.5 million on their date of exercise. The fair value of stock options that vested during the nine months ended September 30, 2006 was approximately \$0.7 million.

Income Taxes

The Company is required to estimate its income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which it operates, including those outside of the United States, which may be subject to certain risks that ordinarily would not be expected in the United States. The income tax accounting process involves estimating its actual current exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from different treatment of items, such as

deferred revenue, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company must then record a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

Significant management judgment is required in determining the Company s provision for income taxes, its deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against its deferred tax assets. The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets of \$18.8 million as of September 30, 2006, due to uncertainties related to its ability to utilize these assets. The valuation allowance is based on management s estimate of future taxable income by jurisdiction in which the Company operates and the period over which the deferred tax assets will be recoverable. In the event that actual results differ from these estimates or management adjusts these estimates in future periods, the Company may need to adjust its valuation allowance which could materially impact the financial position and results of operations.

Long-Lived Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following at September 30, 2006:

		Accumulated		
	Gross	Amortization	Net	
Intangibles subject to amortization:				
Retailer relationships	\$ 5,700,000	\$ (71,250)	\$ 5,628,750	
Trademarks	1,100,000	(17,188))	1,082,812	
OTCeutical formulations	1,600,000	(22,222))	1,577,778	
Non-compete agreements	200,000	(6,250)	193,750	
Capitalized patent costs	563,752	(104,259)	459,493	
	9,163,752	(221,169)	8,942,583	
Intangibles not subject to amortization:				
Trademarks	1,100,000		1,100,000	
Intangibles total	\$ 10,263,752	\$ (221,169)	\$ 10,042,583	

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, *Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets*, goodwill and certain trademarks are not amortized but are reviewed for impairment at least annually. The Company s most recent assessment indicated no impairment as of September 30, 2006.

The retailer relationships, definite-lived trademarks, OTCeutical formulations, non-compete agreements and other intangibles are amortized using the straight-line method over periods of up to 10, 8, 9, 4 and 10 years, respectively. Indefinite-lived trademarks are considered an indefinite-lived asset. Amortization expense totaled \$133,146 and \$157,400 for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively. Estimated amortization expense of intangible assets over the next five fiscal years aggregates approximately \$5.0 million.

The Company applies the provisions of SFAS No. 144, *Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets* (SFAS No. 144). SFAS No. 144 requires that the Company evaluate its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amounts of such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Any write-downs, based on fair value, are to be treated as permanent reductions in the carrying amount of the assets. The Company believes that no impairment exists related to the Company s long-lived assets at September 30, 2006.

Beneficial Conversion Feature of Convertible Instruments

Based on EITF No. 00-27, *Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments* (EITF No. 00-27), which provides guidance on the calculation of a beneficial conversion feature of a convertible instrument, the Company has determined that the convertible debt issued on March 5, 2003 contained a beneficial conversion feature.

Based on the effective conversion price of the convertible debt of \$0.2875 and the market value per share of \$0.71 at March 5, 2003, the intrinsic value was calculated to be \$2,205,522; however in accordance with EITF No. 00-27, the amount of the discount allocated to the beneficial conversion feature is limited to the amount of the proceeds allocated to the instrument. The beneficial conversion feature resulted in a discount of the convertible debt of \$1,500,609 at March 5, 2003. The amount of the discount allocated to the beneficial conversion feature of the convertible debt is amortized from the date of issuance to the earlier of the maturity or conversion date. Therefore, the Company charged \$77,618 for each of the three months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 and \$232,853 for each of the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 to amortization of note discount.

Below Market Interest Rate

The convertible debt has a stated interest rate of prime plus 1%. However, the promissory notes, which were refinanced with the convertible debt, originally had a stated interest rate of 15%. Therefore, the Company determined the fair value of the convertible debt, using an interest rate comparable to that of the refinanced promissory notes, at \$1,863,553. The resulting discount of \$731,783 is amortized from the date of issuance to the earlier of maturity or conversion date. Therefore, the Company charged \$37,851 to amortization of note discount for each of the three months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 and \$113,553 for each of the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

The Company applies SFAS No. 128, *Earnings per Share* (SFAS No. 128), which establishes standards for computing and presenting earnings per share. Basic and diluted net loss per share was determined by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period includes the 88,055 shares of common stock to be issued and held in escrow as consideration for the acquisition of the Alan James Group as if they had been issued on August 17, 2006. Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share for all the periods presented, as the effect of the potential common stock equivalents is anti-dilutive due to the loss in each period. Potential common stock equivalents excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share consists of stock options, warrants, preferred stock and convertible debt as described in the table below:

	Nine Months Ended Septemb	Nine Months Ended September 30,		
	2006	2005		
Options outstanding	2,118,250	2,911,315		
Warrants outstanding	400,000	525,000		
Preferred stock	28,160,200	28,160,200		
Convertible debt	4,060,288	4,060,288		
Total	34,738,738	35,656,803		

Reclassifications

Certain items in the 2005 financials have been reclassified to conform to 2006 presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 123(R)-3, *Transition Election Related to Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards.* The Company is currently evaluating whether it will adopt the alternative transition method provided in the FASB Staff Position for calculating the tax effects of stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123R. The alternative transition method includes simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool (APIC pool) related to the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation, and to determine the subsequent impact on the APIC pool that are outstanding upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, *Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109)* (FIN 48) which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. FIN 48 prescribes how a company should recognize, measure, present and disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax positions that a company has taken or expects to take on a tax return. The Company has not yet determined the impact, if any, of adopting this interpretation on its financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, *Fair Value Measurements* (SFAS No. 157). SFAS No. 157 was issued to provide consistency and comparability in determining fair value measurements and to provide for expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. The definition of fair value maintains the exchange price notion in earlier definitions of fair value but focuses on the exit price of the asset or liability. The exit price is the price that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability adjusted for certain inherent risks and restrictions. Expanded disclosures are also required about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. The effective date is for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company does not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact on the Company s financial position.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, *Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements* (SAB No. 108). SAB No. 108 was issued in order to eliminate the diversity of practice surrounding how public companies quantify financial statement misstatements. In SAB No. 108, the SEC staff established an approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based on the effects of the misstatements on each of the company s financial statement disclosures. This model is commonly referred to as a dual approach because it requires quantification of errors under both of the two widely-recognized methods for quantifying the effects of financial misstatements. The Company will initially apply the provisions of SAB No. 108 in connection with the preparation of its annual financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of SAB No. 108 on its financial position and results of operations.

Note 3. Strategic Alliance with Alticor Inc.

On March 5, 2003, the Company entered into a broad strategic alliance with several affiliates of the Alticor family of companies to develop and market novel nutritional and skin care products. The alliance utilizes Interleukin Genetics intellectual property and expertise in genomics to develop personalized consumer products. Alticor has a long history of manufacturing and distributing high quality nutritional supplements and skin care products to a worldwide market.

The alliance initially included an equity investment, a multi-year research and development agreement, a licensing agreement with royalties on marketed products, the deferment of outstanding loan repayment and the refinancing of bridge financing obligations. The major elements of the initial alliance were:

• The purchase by Alticor of \$7,000,000 of equity in the form of 5 million shares of Series A Preferred Stock for \$1.40 per share. These were convertible into 28,157,683 shares of common stock at a stated conversion price equal to \$0.2486 per share. On March 11, 2004, upon achievement of a defined milestone, Alticor contributed an additional \$2,000,000 to the Company for a total equity funding of \$9,000,000 and a new stated conversion price of \$0.3196 per share, or 28,160,200 shares of common stock.

• The right of the Series A Preferred Stockholders to nominate and elect four directors to a five person Board of Directors.

• A research and development agreement (Research Agreement I) providing the Company with funding of \$5.0 million, payable over the twenty-four month period from April 2003 through March 2005, to conduct certain research projects with a royalty on resulting products.

• Credit facilities (see Note 4).

On June 17, 2004, the Company entered into another research agreement (Research Agreement II), valued at \$2.2 million, as amended, with Alticor to conduct research into the development of a test to identify individuals with specific genetic variations that affect how people gain and maintain weight. During 2004, the Company received \$1,380,000 in research funding under this agreement. No funding related to this agreement was received during 2006 and the Company is not anticipating any additional funding under this agreement.

On March 5, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with Alticor to expand the research being performed under Research Agreement I (Research Agreement III) to provide additional funding of \$2,716,151 over the two years beginning April 1, 2005. Also on March 5, 2005, the Company entered into an additional research agreement (Research Agreement IV) with Alticor for exploratory research valued at \$2,341,500 over a two-year period commencing April 1, 2005. These research agreements are expected to provide the Company with a total of \$5.0 million during the two years ending March 2007. The Company received \$215,123 and \$1,767,305 in funding related to these agreements during the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006 and is expecting to receive the remaining \$772,876 in research funding through March 2007 with these agreements.

Also on April 18, 2005, Alticor paid the Company \$2.0 million as a non-refundable advance payment for genetic risk assessment tests to be processed under the terms of a Distribution Agreement which expired on March 22, 2006. On February 23, 2006, the Company entered into two new purchase agreements with Alticor. The two new purchase agreements cover two genetic health assessment tests that Interleukin Genetics developed on behalf of Alticor. These are: 1) the heart health genetic test, which analyzes DNA variations in the Interleukin-1A and 1B genes to identify whether an individual may have a predisposition for chronically elevated measures of inflammation and an increased risk for heart disease; and 2) the general nutrition genetic test, which analyzes DNA variations in two genes that affect Vitamin B metabolism and four genes that are involved in responding to oxidative stress. The purchase agreement for the heart health genetic test provides for sales of these tests to Alticor through March 2008. Both parties agreed that \$600,000 of the \$2.0 million prepayment received pursuant to the Distribution Agreement would be applied to purchases made under the purchase agreement for the heart health genetic tests from March 23, 2006 through December 31, 2006 to the extent tests are processed. Of the remaining \$1.4 million prepayment, \$125,790 was recognized as revenue for tests processed during the remaining term of

the Distribution Agreement and the balance of \$1,274,210 has been reclassified from deferred receipts to equity. The general nutrition genetic test purchase agreement term is through January 2008.

On August 17, 2006, Alticor purchased from the Company an aggregate of 2,750,037 shares of Common Stock for an aggregate purchase price of \$15,615,537, or \$5.6783 per share. In addition, Alticor also agreed to extend to the Company a credit line of \$14,384,463 of working capital borrowings at any time prior to until August 17, 2008 (See Note 4). The Company incurred \$52,850 of issuance costs associated with this private placement.

Note 4. Debt

On March 5, 2003 as part of its strategic alliance with Alticor Inc., the Company was granted credit facilities as follows:

• \$1,500,000 working capital credit line to initiate selected research agreements with third party entities approved by the board of directors of Interleukin;

• \$2,000,000 refinancing of notes previously held by Pyxis, extending the maturity date and reducing the interest rate; and

• \$595,336 refinancing on July 1, 2003 of bridge financing notes previously held by third parties, extending the maturity date and reducing the interest rate.

There was \$2,595,336 outstanding under the terms of these credit facilities, net of unamortized discount of \$577,343 and \$923,748 at September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively. The credit facilities will mature in December 2007, bear interest at 1% over the prime rate (9.25 % at September 30, 2006), are collateralized by a security interest in the Company s intellectual property (except intellectual property related to periodontal disease and sepsis), and are convertible at the election of Alticor into shares of common stock at a conversion price equal to \$0.6392 per share.

On February 23, 2006, these credit facilities with Alticor were amended to provide the Company with access to an additional \$2.0 million of working capital borrowing at any time prior to April 1, 2007. Any amounts borrowed will bear interest at prime plus 1%, require quarterly interest payments and be due five years from the date of borrowing. In addition, the restrictions on the existing \$1.5 million line of credit were removed so that it can be used for general working capital purposes. No amounts are outstanding under these credit facilities as of September 30, 2006.

On August 17, 2006, these credit facilities with Alticor were further amended to provide the Company with access to an additional \$14.4 million of working capital borrowings at any time prior to August 17, 2008. Any amounts borrowed will bear interest at prime plus 1%, require quarterly interest payments and be due on August 16, 2011. The principal amount of any borrowing under this credit facility is convertible at Alticor s election into a maximum of 2,533,234 shares of Common Stock, reflecting a conversion price of \$5.6783 per share. As a condition of this financing, the Company plans to conduct a rights offering of 2,533,234 shares of its Common Stock to existing shareholders (other than Alticor) at a per share price of \$5.6783. Any proceeds received from the rights offering will reduce the availability under the credit facility.

Note 5. Capital Stock

Authorized Common and Preferred Stock

At September 30, 2006, the Company had authorized 6,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred stock of which 5,000,000 shares were issued and outstanding. At September 30, 2006, the Company had authorized 75,000,000 shares of \$0.001 par value common stock of which 68,898,984 shares were outstanding or reserved for issuance. Of those, 27,200,951 shares were issued and outstanding, 28,160,200 shares were reserved for the issuance upon conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock to common stock, 4,060,288

shares were reserved for the issuance upon conversion of approximately \$2.6 million of debt, 4,383,229 shares were reserved for issuance upon the exercise of authorized and outstanding stock options and stock awards, 400,000 shares were reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding warrants to purchase common stock, 444,194 shares were reserved for issuance upon the exercise of rights held under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 88,055 shares were reserved for issuance to be placed in escrow as initial consideration for the acquisition of the Alan James Group, 2,533,234 shares were reserved for issuance upon the conversion of convertible notes and 1,628,833 shares were reserved for issuance upon the acquisition of the Alan James Group.

Series A Preferred Stock

On March 5, 2003, the Company entered into a Purchase Agreement with Alticor, pursuant to which Alticor purchased from the Company Series A Preferred Stock for \$7,000,000 in cash on that date, and an additional \$2,000,000 in cash that was paid on March 11, 2004 as a result of the Company achieving a certain milestone.

The Series A Preferred Stock accrues dividends at the rate of 8% of the original purchase price per year, payable only when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors and are non-cumulative. To date, no dividends have been declared on these shares. If the Company declares a distribution, with certain exceptions, payable in securities of other persons, evidences of indebtedness issued by us or other persons, assets (excluding cash dividends) or options or rights to purchase any such securities or evidences of indebtedness, then, in each such case the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to a proportionate share of any such distribution as though the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are convertible as of the record date fixed for the determination of the holders of our Common Stock entitled to receive such distribution.

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any of the Company s assets or surplus funds to the holders of its Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, the amount of two times the then-effective purchase price per share, as adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations or splits with respect to such shares, plus all declared but unpaid dividends on such share for each share of Series A Preferred Stock then held by them. The liquidation preference at September 30, 2006 was \$18,000,000. After receiving this amount, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall participate on an as-converted basis with the holders of common stock in any of the remaining assets.

Each share of Series A Preferred Stock is convertible at any time at the option of the holder into a number of shares of the Company s common stock determined by dividing the then-effective purchase price (\$1.80 subject to adjustment) by the conversion price in effect on the date the certificate is surrendered for conversion. As of September 30, 2006, the Series A Preferred Stock is convertible into 28,160,200 shares of Common Stock reflecting a conversion price of \$.3196 per share.

Each holder of Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to vote its shares of Series A Preferred Stock on an as-converted basis with the holders of Common Stock as a single class on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, except as otherwise required by applicable law. This means that each share of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common Stock into which it is convertible on the applicable record date.

Note 6. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases its office and laboratory space under non-cancelable operating leases expiring at various dates through March 2009. The Company also leases certain office equipment under lease obligations. Future minimum lease commitments under these leases at September 30, 2006 are \$1,139,810.

Acquisition of Data Bases

In connection with the research agreement with Alticor dated March 5, 2003, the Company is obligated to purchase two clinical databases. As of June 30, 2004, the Company determined that this obligation met the criteria of SFAS No. 5, *Accounting for Contingencies*, and estimated the cost of these two databases at \$450,000. Accordingly, the Company recorded a liability and charged research and development expenses of \$450,000 at that time. As of September 30, 2006, the Company had expenditures of \$301,094 associated with the acquisition of these databases. The Company believes that the acquisition of the databases will not exceed the amount that the Company has estimated, however actual amounts could differ.

Sponsored Research Agreements

In connection with the research agreement with Alticor dated March 5, 2005, the Company entered into a sponsored research agreement with Yonsei University to conduct a clinical study. The sponsored research agreement is for an amount of \$499,882 and is payable upon achievement of certain milestones. As of September 30, 2006, Yonsei University had achieved milestones valued at \$50,000. The remaining commitment on this agreement is \$449,882. As, and if, Yonsei University completes the other milestones associated with this sponsored research agreement, the Company will record these costs as research and development expenses.

Employment Agreements

On March 31, 2006, the Company entered into employment agreements with two key employees of the Company. These agreements expire March 31, 2009. On August 17, 2006, the Company entered into additional employment agreements with two key employees in connection with the acquisition of the Alan James Group. One of these agreements expires December 31, 2007 and the other expires August 17, 2009. As of September 30, 2006, the remaining commitment under these agreements was approximately \$2.6 million. In addition, these agreements provide for the issuance of up to an additional 94,500 shares of the Company s common stock at various dates during the employment period based on continued employment.

Note 7. Segment Information

The Company follows SFAS No. 131, *Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information* (SFAS No. 131) which establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments in annual and interim financial statements, and requires that companies report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments based on a management approach. SFAS No. 131 also establishes standards for related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas and major customers. As a result of the acquisition of the assets and business of the Alan James Group in August 2006, the Company s has two reportable segments: Genetic Testing Services and Consumer Products.

Interleukin Genetics, Inc. develops genetic tests and performs testing services that can help individuals improve and maintain their health through preventive measures. AJG Brands, Inc., doing

business as the Alan James Group, develops, markets and sells nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals and related activities. The Company s principal operations and markets are located in the United States.

The accounting policies of each of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The Company evaluates performance based on revenue and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA).

The following is a summary of the Company s operations by operating segment:

		Months Ended Septe 2006		, 2005		/Ionths Ended Sep 006		, 005
Genetic Testing Services:								
Revenue	\$	660,206	\$	5,690	\$	2,237,120	\$	20,743
Net loss, before interest, taxes,								
depreciation and amortization of								
\$194,492 and \$643,991 for the three								
months and the nine months ended								
September 30, 2006, respectively	\$	(1,200,613)	\$	(1,296,180)	\$	(3,263,774)	\$	(4,179,313)
Consumer Products (since August 17,								
2006, date of acquisition):								
Revenue	\$	674,725			\$	674,725		
Net loss, before interest, taxes,								
depreciation and amortization of								
\$120,101 for both the three months								
and the nine months ended								
September 30, 2006	\$	(318,443)			\$	(318,443)		
Consolidated:								
Total revenue	\$	1,334,931	\$	5,690	\$	2,911,845	\$	20,743
EBITDA	\$	(1,519,056)	\$	(1,296,180)	\$	(3,582,217)	\$	(4,179,313)
Interest, net	17,	142	(9,1))	(20),139)	(41	,480)
Taxes								
Depreciation	(84	,682)	(78	,379)	(24	1,708)	(22	4,254)
Amortization		7,053)	· ·	3,849)	()2,245)) (1,229
Net loss	\$	(1,833,649)	\$	(1,507,521)	\$	(4,346,309)	\$	(4,816,276)

The Company has no operations outside of the United States. For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, the Company had minimal royalty income derived from distributors outside the United States, minimal expenses derived from research partners outside the United States and minimal assets outside of the United States. The Company does not believe this risk is material and does not use derivative financial instruments to manage foreign currency fluctuation risk.

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

This report on Form 10-Q and the documents incorporated by reference within this document contain certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act. Statements contained in this report that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. Words or phrases such as will likely result , expect , will continue , anticipate , estimate , intend , plan , project , outlook , or similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements address or may address the following subjects:

• The sufficiency of our current cash resources, together with additional research agreements, anticipated revenue from product launches and other arrangements to fund operations for at least the next twelve months;

- Our expectation regarding our gross profits from genetic testing services in future periods;
- Our expectation that we will receive genetic risk assessment testing revenue and/or royalty payments from Alticor;
- Our expectation that consumer products revenue will be sustainable;
- Our expectation that we may sign additional research agreements;
- Our expectation of the benefits that will result from the ongoing research programs that outside parties are conducting on our behalf;
- Our expectations regarding the success of developing products, the timing of releasing products for sale or the success of these products when they are released;

• Our expectations regarding our ability to attract business partners to assist in developing, marketing or distribution of our products;

• Our expectations that certain healthcare related trends will emerge or continue that will support our business model;

• Our expectation that we might derive substantial benefit from our patented intellectual property; and

• Our expectation that we will continue to experience losses until our revenue grows substantially from current levels.

Actual results may vary materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ from expectations include but are not limited to; risks related to market acceptance of genetic risk assessment tests in general and our products in particular, risks related to technology and product obsolescence, delays in development of products, dependence on third parties, our ability to fund operations for at least the next twelve months, competitive risks and those risks described in this report in Part II, Item 1A. Risk Factors and elsewhere in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, as updated from time to time in our subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K. We cannot be certain that our results will not be adversely affected by one or more of these factors or by other factors not currently anticipated. All information set forth in this Form 10-Q is as of the date of this Form 10-Q. Unless required by law we accept no responsibility to update this information.

General Overview

We are a biotechnology company focused on developing, acquiring, and commercializing personalized health products. We use functional genomics to help in the development of risk assessment tests, pharmacogenetic tests, nutritional and therapeutic products based on the genetic variations in people. We have commercialized genetic tests for periodontal disease risk assessment, cardiovascular risk assessment, and general nutrition assessment. In addition, our Alan James Group subsidiary sells nutraceutical brands, including Ginkoba®, Ginsana®, and Venastat® through the nation s largest food, drug and mass retailers. Our current development programs focus on osteoporosis and weight management genetic risk assessment tests, as well as our new proprietary OTCeutical products for distribution through the Alan James Group. We expect that these programs will also lead to the personalized selection of nutritional and therapeutic products, and provide consumers and healthcare professionals with better preventative product alternatives.

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective of significant judgments and uncertainties, and could potentially result in materially different results under different assumptions and conditions. We believe that our most critical accounting policies upon which our financial condition depends, and which involve the most complex or subjective decisions or assessments are:

Strategic alliance with Alticor:

We account for our strategic alliance with Alticor in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) No. 01-1, Accounting for Convertible Instruments Granted or Issued to a Nonemployee for Goods or Services or a Combination of Goods or Services and Cash (EITF No. 01-1). Under EITF No. 01-1, the proceeds received from Alticor in connection with the March 5, 2003 transaction must first be allocated to the fair value of the convertible instruments issued. As of March 5, 2003, the fair value of the convertible instruments issued was \$23.7 million; therefore proceeds received from Alticor in connection with the March 5, 2003 transaction, up to \$23.7 million, have been recorded as equity.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from genetic testing is recognized when service is completed, generally when the results have been reported to the individual who ordered the test. To the extent that tests have been prepaid but results have not yet been reported, recognition of all related revenue is deferred.

Revenue from product sales is recognized at the time of sale, net of estimated returns, refunds and other related costs. Sales returns are estimated based on historical experience. Returns are recorded in the year such returns are received and when returns are expected to be received in the near term. In the ordinary course of business and due to future events and circumstances, actual sales returns could be above the estimated accrued amounts.

Stock-based compensation:

We account for our stock-based compensation expense in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (Revised 2004), *Share-Based Payment* (SFAS No. 123R) using the modified prospective basis. SFAS No. 123R addresses all forms of share-based payment (SBP) awards, including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights. SFAS No. 123R requires the Company to expense SBP awards with compensation cost for SBP transactions measured at fair value. SFAS No. 123R applies to new equity awards and to equity awards modified, repurchased or canceled after the effective date. Additionally, compensation cost for the portion of awards for which the requisite service has not been rendered that are outstanding as of the

effective date shall be recognized as the requisite service is rendered on or after the effective date. The compensation cost for that portion of awards shall be based on the grant-date fair value of those awards as calculated from the pro forma disclosures under SFAS No. 123. Additionally, common stock purchased pursuant to our employee stock purchase plan will be expensed based upon the fair market value in excess of purchase price.

Income taxes:

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate, including those outside the United States, which may be subject to certain risks that ordinarily would not be expected in the United States. The income tax accounting process involves estimating our actual current exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items, such as deferred revenue, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities. We must then record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. We have recorded a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets of \$18.8 million as of September 30, 2006, due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize these assets. The valuation allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income by jurisdiction in which we operate and the period over which our deferred tax assets will be recoverable. In the event that actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods we may need to adjust our valuation allowance which could materially impact our financial position and results of operations.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended September 30, 2006 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2005

Revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2006 was \$1.3 million compared to \$6,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2005, an increase of \$1.3 million. The increase was due to revenues of \$660,000 from our genetic testing services, particularly from Alticor for the heart health genetic test and the general nutrition genetic test of \$648,000, both of which were launched by Alticor during the first quarter of 2006, and \$675,000 from branded nutritional supplements sold to large retail outlets by the Alan James Group since August 17, 2006 (the date of our acquisition of that business). Since Alticor has not previously sold a product similar to the genetic risk assessment tests, we cannot predict the seasonal influence on our test revenues or whether revenues derived from Alticor related to the heart health and general nutrition genetic tests will be sustained in future periods. In addition to the heart health and general nutrition genetic tests, we are also developing genetic risk assessment tests for osteoporosis and weight management. We also receive a royalty on Alticor s sales of nutritional products associated with the heart health genetic test and for the three months ended September 30, 2006, this royalty revenue was \$1,000. The balance in each period was from royalties on sales of the PST® periodontal disease genetic risk assessment test. Cost of revenue was \$1.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Gross profit was \$328,000, or 25% of revenue, for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Cost of genetic testing revenue, including fixed overhead costs associated with laboratory operations, was \$332,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006, resulting in a gross profit from genetic testing of \$328,000, or 50% of revenue. Cost of nutritional supplement products revenue was \$675,000 for the period August 17, 2006 (the date of our acquisition of that business) to September 30, 2006, resulting in no gross profit from these products. This was primarily for the sale of inventory that was acquired at fair value at the date of acquisition. We expect little to no gross profit until the acquired inventory is sold. Thereafter, we expect gross margins to return to their historical levels, between 45% to 50%. Revenue and gross profit

results for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 contributed to a net loss of 1.8 million, or (0.07) per share, compared to a loss of 1.5 million, or (0.06) per share for the same period in 2005.

Research and development expenses were \$686,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$739,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2005, a decrease of \$53,000 or 7%. Funded research and development expenses were \$424,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$380,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2005, a increase of \$44,000 or 11%. In March 2003, we entered into a research agreement with Alticor to develop genetic tests and software to assess personalized risk and develop and use screening technologies to validate the effectiveness of the nutrigenomic consumables Alticor is developing. This agreement expired in March 2005. In March 2005, we entered into two new agreements with Alticor to continue the research being performed. Direct expenses associated with these agreements were \$392,000 and \$280,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In June 2004, we entered into another research agreement with Alticor to conduct research into the development of a test to identify individuals with specific genetic variations that affect how people gain and maintain weight. Direct expenses associated with this agreement were \$32,000 and \$100,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$359,000 for

Selling, general and administrative expenses were \$1.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$650,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2005, an increase of \$596,000 or 92%. This increase was largely attributable to costs associated with the Alan James Group since August 17, 2006 (the date of our acquisition of that business) and the recording of \$265,000 of stock-based compensation classified as selling, general and administrative expense for the three months ended September 30, 2006 as a result of adopting SFAS No.123R.

Amortization of intangible assets was \$132,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$8,000 during the same period in the prior year. This increase was primarily attributable to amortization expense associated with acquisition-related intangible assets.

Interest income was \$78,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$38,000 the three months ended September 30, 2005. The increase of 102% is primarily the result of an increase in our cash balances being maintained in interest bearing accounts coupled with the increase in the prevailing interest rates. Interest expense of \$61,000 was incurred during the three months ended September 30, 2006, compared to \$48,000 for the same period in 2005, an increase of 27%. The increase is primarily due to the increase in the prevailing interest rate over the two periods from 7.25% in 2005 to 9.25% in 2006.

We recorded amortization of note discount of \$115,000 for each of the three months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005. Of the \$115,000 expense, \$78,000 is due to the amortization of the \$1.5 million of discount resulting from the beneficial conversion feature of the convertible debt issued in March 2003 and \$37,000 is due to the amortization of the \$732,000 of discount associated with the below market stated interest rate.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005

Revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 was \$2.9 million compared to \$21,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, an increase of \$2.9 million. The increase was due to revenues of \$2.2 million from our genetic testing services, particularly from Alticor for the heart health genetic test and

the general nutrition genetic test of \$2.2 million, both of which were launched by Alticor during the first quarter of 2006, and \$675,000 from branded nutritional supplements sold to large retail outlets by the Alan James Group since August 17, 2006 (the date of our acquisition of that business). Since Alticor has not previously sold a product similar to the genetic risk assessment tests, we cannot predict the seasonal influence on our test revenues or whether revenues derived from Alticor related to the heart health and general nutrition genetic tests will be sustained in future periods. In addition to the heart health and general nutrition genetic tests, we are also developing genetic risk assessment tests for osteoporosis and weight management. We also receive a royalty on Alticor s sales of nutritional products associated with the heart health genetic test and for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, this royalty revenue was \$5,000. The balance in each period was from royalties on sales of the PST® periodontal disease genetic risk assessment test. Cost of revenue was \$1.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Gross profit was \$1.3 million, or 45% of revenue, for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Cost of genetic testing revenue, including fixed overhead costs associated with laboratory operations, was \$938,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, resulting in a gross profit from genetic testing of \$1.3 million, or 58% of revenue. Cost of nutritional supplement products revenue was \$675,000 for the period August 17, 2006 (the date of our acquisition of that business) to September 30, 2006, resulting in no gross profit from these products. This was primarily for the sale of inventory that was acquired at fair value at the date of acquisition. We expect little to no gross profit until the acquired inventory is sold. Thereafter, we expect gross margins to return to their historical levels, between 45% to 50%. Revenue and gross profit results for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 contributed to a net loss of \$4.3 million, or \$(0.18) per share, compared to a loss of \$4.8 million, or (0.20) per share for the same period in 2005.

Research and development expenses were \$2.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$2.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, an increase of \$223,000 or 11%. Funded research and development expenses were \$1.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$1.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, an increase of \$287,000 or 29%. In March 2003, we entered into a research agreement with Alticor to develop genetic tests and software to assess personalized risk and develop and use screening technologies to validate the effectiveness of the nutrigenomic consumables Alticor is developing. In March 2005, we entered into two new agreements with Alticor to continue the research being performed. Direct expenses associated with these agreements were \$944,000 and \$747,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In June 2004, we entered into another research agreement with Alticor to conduct research into the development of a test to identify individuals with specific genetic variations that affect how people gain and maintain weight. Direct expenses associated with this agreement were \$346,000 and \$189,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In addition, during 2005, we conducted genotyping tests for Alticor for research purposes. The costs associated with these tests were \$66,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2005. Other research and development expenses, including overhead costs associated with research and development activities, were \$965,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$1.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, a decrease of \$65,000 or 6%. This decrease was largely attributable to the change in the role of the Chief Scientific Officer from largely scientific research to largely executive management as of March 31, 2006. This amount was partly offset by the recording of \$220,000 of stock-based compensation classified as research and development expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 as a result of adopting SFAS No.123R.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were \$2.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$2.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, an increase of \$476,000 or 20%. This increase was largely attributable to costs associated with the Alan James Group since August 17, 2006 (the date of our acquisition of that business) and the recording of \$468,000 of stock-based compensation classified as selling, general and administrative expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 as a result of adopting SFAS No.123R. This amount was partially offset by non-

recurring professional fees incurred in 2005 associated with the implementation of Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404.

Amortization of intangible assets was \$156,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$25,000 during the same period in the prior year. This increase was primarily attributable to amortization expense associated with acquisition-related intangible assets.

Interest income was \$150,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$90,000 the nine months ended September 30, 2005. The increase of 66% is primarily the result of an increase in our cash balances being maintained in interest bearing accounts coupled with an increase in the prevailing interest rates. Interest expense of \$170,000 was incurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2006, compared to \$132,000 for the same period in 2005, an increase of 29%. The increase is primarily due to the increase in the prevailing interest rate over the two periods from 6.25% in 2005 to 9.25% in 2006.

We recorded amortization of note discount of \$346,000 for each of the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005. Of the \$346,000 expense, \$233,000 is due to the amortization of the \$1.5 million of discount resulting from the beneficial conversion feature of the convertible debt issued in March 2003 and \$113,000 is due to the amortization of the \$732,000 of discount associated with the below market stated interest rate.

Financial Condition

Cash and cash available under our credit facilities is one of the key financial performance indicators for us. As of September 30, 2006, we had cash and cash equivalents of \$9.9 million and borrowings available under our credit facilities of \$17.9 million for a total of \$27.8 million in cash and available borrowings. Net cash used in operating activities was \$3.6 million and \$2.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Cash received from customers was \$1.2 million and \$2.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease was attributable to the \$2.0 million prepayment for genetic tests to be performed in 2006 received in 2005 offset by higher sales in 2006. Cash paid for operating expenses was \$4.9 million and \$4.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. This increase was partially attributable to a higher headcount. Total headcount was 35 and 17 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The majority of the headcount increase was due to the acquisition of the Alan James Group consummated in August 2006 together with general growth in our genetic testing business. Cash received from interest income was \$122,000 and \$77,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The improvement was due to the increase in our cash balances being maintained in interest bearing accounts coupled with an increase in the prevailing interest rates.

Cash used in investing activities was \$7.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and \$155,000 for the same period in 2005. In August 2006, we acquired the assets and business of the Alan James Group. The acquired business primarily develops, markets and sells nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals and related activities. We paid intial consideration at the closing consisting of approximately \$7.0 million in cash and the obligation to place in escrow \$250,000 and 88,055 shares of Common Stock. We are also responsible to pay additional contingent consideration of up to \$1,500,000 in cash and up to 1,628,833 shares of Common Stock over the next three years upon achievement of certain earnings milestones by the Alan James Group. Capital additions were \$258,000 and \$155,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

Cash provided by financing activities was \$17.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to \$2.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005. On August 17, 2006, we entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with Alticor. Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, we issued and sold to Alticor an aggregate of 2,750,037 shares of Common Stock for an aggregate purchase price of \$15,615,537, or \$5.6783 per share. In addition, during 2006, we received \$1.5 million of research funding

from our strategic alliance with Alticor, \$823,000 from the exercise of stock options and warrants and \$32,000 from stock purchases through the employee stock purchase plan. These amounts were offset by \$3,000 of payments of our capital lease obligations. During 2005, we received \$2.2 million of research funding from our strategic alliance with Alticor, \$240,000 from the exercise of stock options and \$21,000 from stock purchases through the employee stock purchase plan. These amounts were offset by \$11,000 of payments of our capital lease obligations. We currently do not have any commitments for any material capital expenditures.

A summary of our contractual obligations as of September 30, 2006 is included in the table below:

	Payments Due By Period				
		Less than			More than
Contractual Obligations	Total	1 Year	1-3 Years	3-5 Years	5 Years
Long-Term Debt Obligations	\$ 2,595,336	\$	\$ 2,595,336	\$	\$
Operating Lease Obligations	1,139,810	480,948	658,862		
TOTAL	\$ 3,735,146	\$ 480,948	\$ 3,254,198	\$	\$

Based on our current operating and capital expenditure forecasts, we believe that the combination of funds currently available, funds to be generated from operations and our available lines of credit will be adequate to finance our ongoing operations for at least the next twelve months.

Effects of Inflation

We believe that inflation and changing prices over the past three years have not had a significant impact on our net revenue or on our income from continuing operations.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk related to changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates primarily through our financing activities. Interest on our notes payable accrues at a rate equal to the prime rate of interest plus 1% per annum. Our ability to carry out our business plan or our ability to finance future working capital requirements may be impacted if the cost of carrying debt fluctuates to the point where it becomes a burden on our resources.

Foreign Currency Risk

Some of our sales occur outside the United States and are transacted in foreign currencies. Accordingly, we are subject to exposure from adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. At this time we do not believe this risk is material and we do not currently use derivative financial instruments to manage foreign currency fluctuation risk. However, if foreign sales increase and the risk of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation increases, we may in the future consider utilizing derivative instruments to mitigate these risks.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) *Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures*. Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, have concluded that, based on such evaluation, our disclosure controls and procedures

were adequate and effective to ensure that material information relating to us, including our consolidated subsidiaries, was made known to them by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q was being prepared.

In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, our management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and our management necessarily is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

(b) *Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.* No change in internal control over financial reporting occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, such internal control over financial reporting. The Company acquired the Alan James Group on August 17, 2006 and is in the process of evaluating Alan James Group s internal control over financial reporting and will make changes where appropriate.

PART II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

We are not aware of any current or pending litigation to which we are or may be a party that we believe could materially adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition or net cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this report and the factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, you should carefully consider the factors described below which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. These risks are not the only risks facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

The risk factors described below may materially impact your investment in our company or may in the future, and, in some cases already do, materially affect us and our business, financial condition and results of operations. You should carefully consider these factors with respect to your investment in our securities. This section includes or refers to certain forward-looking statements; you should read the explanation of the qualifications and limitations on such forward-looking statements beginning on page 22 of this report.

Our recent acquisition may not be profitable, and the integration of our businesses may be costly and difficult and may cause disruption to our business.

We have acquired and are in the process of integrating into our operations the business formerly operated by the Alan James Group, LLC. The ultimate success of this acquisition depends, in part, on our ability to realize the anticipated synergies, cost savings and growth opportunities from integrating this business and its assets into our existing businesses. However, the successful integration of independent businesses or assets is a complex, costly and time-consuming process. The difficulties of integrating companies and acquired assets include among others:

- consolidating manufacturing and research and development operations, where appropriate;
- integrating newly acquired businesses or product lines into a uniform financial reporting system;
- coordinating sales, distribution and marketing functions;
- establishing or expanding manufacturing, sales, distribution and marketing functions in order to accommodate newly acquired businesses or product lines;

• preserving the important licensing, research and development, manufacturing and supply, distribution, marketing, customer and other relationships;

- minimizing the diversion of management s attention from ongoing business concerns; and
- coordinating geographically separate organizations.

We may not accomplish the integration of this acquisition smoothly or successfully. The diversion of the attention of our management from our current operations to the integration effort and any difficulties encountered in combining operations could prevent us from realizing the full benefits anticipated to result from this acquisition and adversely affect our other businesses. Additionally, the costs associated with the integration of this acquisition may be substantial. To the extent that we incur integration costs that were not anticipated when we financed our acquisition, these unexpected costs could adversely impact our liquidity or force us to borrow additional funds. Ultimately, the value of any business or asset that we have acquired may not be greater than or equal to its purchase price.

Future acquisitions of new and complementary businesses, products or technologies could disrupt our business and, depending on how we finance these acquisitions, could result in the use of significant amounts of cash.

Our success depends in part on our ability to continually enhance and broaden our product offerings in response to changing technologies, customer demands and competitive pressures. Accordingly, from time to time we may seek to acquire businesses, products or technologies instead of developing them ourselves. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:

- the inability to complete the acquisition;
- disruption of our ongoing businesses and diversion of management attention;
- difficulties in integrating the acquired entities, products or technologies;
- difficulties in operating the acquired business profitably;
- difficulties in transitioning key customer, distributor and supplier relationships;
- risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience; and
- unanticipated costs.

Any of these factors could materially harm our business or our operating results.

Goodwill and/or other intangible assets that we have recorded in connection with our acquisitions of the Alan James Group business could become impaired, requiring us to take significant charges against earnings.

In connection with the accounting for our acquisitions of the Alan James Group business, we have recorded, or expect to record, a significant amount of goodwill and other intangible assets. Under current accounting guidelines, we must assess, at least annually and potentially more frequently, whether the value of goodwill and other intangible assets has been impaired. Any reduction or impairment of the value of goodwill or other intangible assets will result in a charge against earnings which could materially adversely affect our reported results of operations in future periods.

If we deliver products with defects, our credibility may be harmed, market acceptance of our products may decrease and we may be exposed to liability in excess of our product liability insurance coverage.

The manufacturing and marketing of consumer and professional diagnostic products, nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals involve an inherent risk of product liability claims. In addition, our product development and production are extremely complex and could expose our products to defects. Any defects could harm our credibility and decrease market acceptance of our products. In addition, our marketing of nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals may cause us to be subjected to various product liability claims, including, among others, claims that the nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals have inadequate warnings concerning side effects and interactions with other substances. Potential product liability claims may exceed the amount of our insurance coverage or may be excluded from coverage under the terms of the policy. In the event that we are held liable for a claim for which we are not indemnified, or for damages exceeding the limits of our insurance coverage, that claim could materially damage our business and our financial condition.

Our sales of specific nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals could be negatively impacted by media attention or other news developments that challenge the safety and effectiveness of those specific nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals.

Most growth in the nutraceutical and OTCeutical industry is attributed to new products that tend to generate greater attention in the marketplace than do older products. Positive media attention resulting

from new scientific studies or announcements can spur rapid growth in individual segments of the market, and also impact individual brands. Conversely, news that challenges individual segments or products can have a negative impact on the industry overall as well as on sales of the challenged segments or products. Many of our nutraceutical products serve well-established market segments and, absent unforeseen new developments or trends, are not expected to benefit from rapid growth. Our OTCeutical products are newer products that are more likely to be the subject of new scientific studies or announcements, which could be either positive or negative. News or other developments that challenge the safety or effectiveness of these products could negatively impact the profitability of our nutraceutical and OTCeutical business.

The profitability of our consumer products businesses may suffer if we are unable to establish and maintain close working relationships with our customers.

For the quarter ended September 30, 2006, approximately 51% of our revenues were derived from our consumer products business, which consists of our consumer diagnostic products, nutraceuticals and OTCeuticals. These businesses rely to a great extent on close working relationships with our customers rather than long-term exclusive contractual arrangements. Customer concentration in these businesses is relatively high, especially in our nutraceutical and OTCeutical segment where one customer accounted for approximately 34% of revenues during the quarter ended September 30, 2006. In addition, customers of our branded and private label consumer products businesses purchase products through purchase orders only and are not obligated to make future purchases. We therefore rely on our ability to deliver quality products on time in order to retain and generate customers. If we fail to meet our customers needs or expectations, whether due to manufacturing issues that affect quality or capacity issues that result in late shipments, we will harm our reputation and customer relationships and likely lose customers. Additionally, if we are unable to maintain close working relationships with our customers, sales of all of our products and our ability to successfully launch new products could suffer. The loss of a major customer and the failure to generate new accounts could significantly reduce our revenues or prevent us from achieving projected growth.

Period-to-period comparisons of our operating results may not be meaningful due to our recent acquisition.

We have recently completed the acquisition of the business of the Alan James Group, LLC which make it difficult to analyze our results and to compare them from period to period. Period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations may not be meaningful due to this acquisition and are not indications of our future performance. Any future acquisitions will also make our results difficult to compare from period to period in the future.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

On August 17, 2006, the Company issued 2,750,037 shares of Common Stock for cash in the amount of \$5.6783 per share. The Company also entered into a convertible credit facility that could result in the issuance of an additional 2,533,234 shares of Common Stock upon the conversion of convertible notes issuable under such credit facility. All of these shares of Common Stock will be issued pursuant to the exemption from registration provided Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and Regulation D promulgated thereunder.

On August 17, 2006, the Company became obligated to issue 88,055 shares of Common Stock as partial consideration for the acquisition of assets of Alan James Group, LLC and certain of its affiliates. The Company may become obligated to issue up to an additional 1,628,833 shares of Common Stock upon the achievement of certain milestones by the acquired business. All of these shares of Common Stock will be issued pursuant to the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and Regulation D promulgated thereunder.

Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
Not applicable.	
Item 4.	Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
Not applicable.	
Item 5.	Other Information.
Not applicable.	
Item 6.	Exhibits.
The exhibits listed	in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits are filed as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
33	

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

	INTERLEUKIN GEN	IETICS, INC.
Date: November 9, 2006	By:	/s/ TIMOTHY J. RICHERSON
		Timothy J. Richerson
		Chief Executive Officer
		(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: November 9, 2006	By:	/s/ JOHN J. MCCABE
		John J. McCabe
		Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
		(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number 31.1* 31.2* 32.1*	Exhibit Certification by Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Certification by Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
*	Filed herewith.